
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and 
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint. 

 

Scrutiny Board 
6 October 2020 

 
Time 
 

6.00 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Scrutiny 

Venue 
 

Virtual Teams Meeting 

Membership 
 

Chair Cllr Paul Sweet (Lab) 
Vice-chair Cllr Jonathan Crofts (Con) 
 

Labour Conservative  

Cllr Philip Bateman MBE 
Cllr Alan Bolshaw 
Cllr Greg Brackenridge 
Cllr Val Evans 
Cllr Phil Page 
Cllr Rita Potter 
Cllr Mak Singh 
Cllr Rupinderjit Kaur 
Cllr Bhupinder Gakhal 
 

Cllr Wendy Thompson 
 

 

Quorum for this meeting is four Councillors. 
 

Information for the Public 
 

If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team: 

Contact Julia Cleary 
Tel/Email julia.cleary@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square, 

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL 
 

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from: 
 

Website  http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/  

Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Tel 01902 555046 

 

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public. 

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Agenda 

Page 2 of 2 

Agenda 
 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 
Item No. Title 

 
MEETING BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
1 Apologies for absence  
 

2 Declarations of interest  
 

3 Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 10) 
 [To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record.] 

 

4 Matters arising  
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
5 Annual Social Care, Public Health and Corporate Complaints Report (Pages 11 - 

36) 
 [Sarah Campbell, Customer Engagement Manager to present report.] 

 

6 Community Asset Transfer Policy and Strategy Review (Pages 37 - 58) 
 [Report to be presented by Julia Nock, Head of Assets.] 

 

7 Work programme  
 [To consider the Board and the Panel work programmes and to receive an update on 

the connected city theme.] [This report will be sent to follow.] 
 



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

Scrutiny Board 
Minutes - 14 July 2020 

 

Attendance 
 

Members of the Scrutiny Board 
 
Cllr Paul Sweet (Chair) 
Cllr Jonathan Crofts (Vice-Chair) 
Cllr Philip Bateman MBE 
Cllr Alan Bolshaw 
Cllr Greg Brackenridge 
Cllr Val Evans 
Cllr Phil Page 
Cllr Wendy Thompson 
Cllr Rupinderjit Kaur 
Cllr Bhupinder Gakhal 
Cllr Val Evans 

 
In Attendance 
 
Cllr Beverley Momenabadi                                               Digital Innovation Champion 
 
Employees  
 
Richard Lawrence                                                            Director of Regeneration 
David Pattison                                                                  Director of Governance 
Laura Phillips                                                                    Head of Governance 
Julia Cleary                                                                       Scrutiny and Systems Manager 
Earl Piggott-Smith                                                             Scrutiny Officer 
Martin Stevens                                                                  Scrutiny Officer 
Charlotte Johns                                                                 Director of Strategy 
John Denley                                                                      Director of Public Health 
Chris Jellyman                                                                  Neighbourhood Safety Co-ordinator 
 

 

 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 

Item No. Title 

 
1 Welcome and Introductions 

Cllr Paul Sweet, Chair, welcomed everyone to the virtual meeting and advised it was 
being live streamed on the Council’s website. The press and public would be able to 
either record or take pictures of the meeting. A recording of the meeting would be 
available for viewing on the Council’s website.  
 
Cllr Sweet advised that he was not expecting any exempt or restricted items on the 
agenda.   
 

Page 3

Agenda Item No: 3



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 
2 Apologies for absence 

The Chair wanted to record the condolences on behalf of Board to Cllr Rita Potter 
following the recent death of her mother. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Rita Potter. 
 

3 Declarations of interest 
There were no declarations of interest. 

 
4 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 16 June 2020 

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 June 2020 be approved as a 

correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
5 Minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2020 

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2020 be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

6 Matters arising 
There were no matters arising. 
 

7 Renewal of the Public Space Protection Order - Drinking Restrictions 
John Denley, Director of Public Health, introduced the report and outlined the 

background to the report and presented it to the Board for comment.  

The Director advised the Board that the current Public Space Protection Order - 

Drinking Restrictions (PSPO) covered the period April 2017 to April 2020. The report 

was seeking support for the recommendation to renew the PSPO with the same 

restrictions as before. 

The Director invited Chris Jellyman, Neighbourhood Safety Co-ordinator, to share the 

findings of the public consultation exercise about the proposal to renew the existing 

PSPO to prohibit public drinking and also to extend this restriction to cover the whole 

City. 

The Neighbourhood Safety Co-ordinator outlined the key findings from the public 

consultation exercise about proposed changes to the PSPO, that was recently held. 

The PSPO granted powers to the police to stop people drinking and to surrender 

alcohol if they were either causing or likely to cause ASB. 

The public consultation ran from 27 May 2020 to 29 June 2020 and 537 responses to 

the survey had been submitted by the public. The Neighbourhood Safety Co-

ordinator gave a summary of the public response to the survey questions and then 

outlined the next steps in the process to renew the PSPO. The Chair thanked the 

Neighbourhood Safety Co-ordinator for the presentation and invited questions from 

the Board.  

The Board requested a comment on the statistics for ASB in Wednesfield North area 

which were unexpected. The Neighbourhood Safety Co-ordinator advised the data 

presented was collected by the police and he was able to share more detailed 

Page 4



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

findings if needed. The Neighbourhood Safety Co-ordinator advised that the policy 

was not focused on enforcement but also aimed to provide education and support to 

change behaviour. 

The introduction of PSPO would also support the work of the police during the 

summer months to enforce reasonable behaviour. The Neighbourhood Safety Co-

ordinator advised that he had regular meetings with the police to discuss any issues.  

The Neighbourhood Safety Co-ordinator added that the PSPO would be reviewed 

regularly and an application to apply to other areas would be considered, if there was 

evidence to support this.  

Resolved: The Board supported the report recommendations and thanked the 

Neighbourhood Safety Co-ordinator for his presentation. 

 
8 Recovery 

Charlotte Johns, Director of Strategy, advised the Board that the presentation would 
give an update on the recovery framework report that was presented at the previous 
meeting.  
 
The Director of Strategy outlined the overarching principles that would underpin the 
approach to helping the City recover. The Director of Strategy outlined the key 
elements of the three-step approach locally and how linked issues will be considered 
and other cross cutting themes. The Director of Strategy commented on the findings 
of the impact assessment and the learning from COVID-19 which had provided 
intelligence about how future services could be delivered. The findings of an 
employee survey were reported in respect of a number of key themes and the 
challenges and opportunities presented.   
 
The Director of Strategy commented on the specific findings which considered the 
impact of COVID-19 on specific groups and areas of the City and the work being 
done to better understand the issues; particularly those individuals and businesses 
adversely affected by the pandemic. 
 
The Director of Strategy outlined the findings at ward level and also highlighted future 
risks which may affect the City and the unknown scenarios which could impact future 
recovery plans. The Board was given details of both short term and longer-term 
priorities or actions that could support the recovery plans for the City.  The Board 
commented on the references in the report to the negative effects of COVID-19 but 
queried if there were any positives from the research that could be shared, for 
example, increased online sales. The Director of Strategy accepted the focus of the 
negative impact of COVID but did acknowledge a number of positive outcomes, for 
example encouraging people to innovate and to develop new skills and learning. 
 
The Board while accepting the challenges, highlighted the potential benefits of the 
rollout of 5G across the City to businesses and citizens. The Board queried the 
impact of the decision by Government to remove equipment supplied by Huawei from 
the network and how this may affect the economic plans and proposals detailed in 
the presentation for the City in the future. The Director of Strategy invited Cllr 
Beverley Momenabadi, Digital Innovation Champion, to comment. Cllr Momenabadi 
commented that Huawei provided only 35 percent on the kit for the mobile operating 

Page 5



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

network. The Government had announced that no new 5G equipment could be 
bought after 31 December 2020, but this did not apply to older kit which could remain 
until no longer needed.  There was a commitment to roll out the 5G infrastructure 
network because of the benefits it could bring, but discussions were ongoing to 
consider in detail the implications of the decision. 
 
The Board queried the findings of a report on foodbank usage and specifically the 
finding that Springvale ward had the highest number accessing the service and how 
this differed from the information reported in the presentation.  The Director of 
Strategy confirmed that a detailed response could be provided with an analysis of the 
data and a detailed breakdown behind the information presented about the use of 
food banks and the food hub during the response phase.  The Board requested 
similar data for the Tettenhall. 
 
The Board commented on the difficulty in getting up to date unemployment data on a 
regular basis. The Director of Strategy agreed to provide food bank data analysed by 
ward and agreed that unemployment ward data would be sent to Councillors. The 
Director of Strategy suggested that the information could be included in the weekly 
Councillor update bulletin published by the Director of Governance. The information 
on unemployment trends was published on the Council website. The Board thanked 
the Director of Strategy for her presentation.  
 
Resolved: 
 

 The Director of Strategy to share information on foodbank usage at the ward 
level with the Board. 
 

 The Director of Strategy to liaise with the Director of Governance to include 
unemployment ward data in the weekly Councillor update bulletins. 

 
9 Scrutiny work programme 

David Pattison, Director of Governance, outlined the proposed way forward for the 
future Scrutiny Work Programme. The Director of Governance outlined three 
potential priority areas for Scrutiny Panels and Scrutiny Board and invited Panel 
Members to comment on the suggested topics below and agree a priority for the 
Work Programme: 
 

 Connected City 

 Employment – post Covid 

 Voluntary and Community Partnership Working 
 
The Director of Governance advised the Board that the plan was that the chosen 
topic would be a cross-cutting theme where each Scrutiny Panel would consider a 
specific aspect of the issue as part of their Work Programme.  
 
The Director outlined the background to each of the topics and possible areas of 
investigation by each of the Scrutiny Panels. At the end of each PowerPoint 
presentation the Board were invited to ask questions and comment on the suggested 
topic. 
 
Connected City – Discussion 
 

Page 6



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

The Board queried the comment about the Council moving from digital by design to 
digital by default and whether this was something the public wanted to see happen 
and added that there would be members of the public who would want to continue to 
speak to someone in person at the Civic Centre. The Director of Governance 
responded that this was the opportunity to have a debate about how to make Council 
services accessible, while at the same accepting that some members of the public 
would need support to access the help needed. The Director of Governance 
commented on the how older members of the population had responded positively to 
using technology to access services and the importance of also offering people a 
choice of meeting people face-to-face where this was needed. The Director of 
Governance commented on cost savings to the Council of providing services digitally 
24 hours a day and the benefits of this to the public.  
 
The Board commented on the benefits to Councillors of using Microsoft Teams but 
expressed concern about the problems caused by the lack of printing facilities at 
home and the process involved in sending documents or printing letters. The Board 
stressed the importance of involving the representatives of local faith groups and to 
offer training and support to residents on using new technology. The Board 
expressed concern that some children and young people had lacked the equipment 
to take part in online school learning and highlighted the need to improve this 
situation by working in partnership with other agencies. 
 
The Director of Governance acknowledged the importance of partnership working 
with communities which was seen to be critical and which also provided an 
opportunity to provide digital training to local residents. The Council had applied for 
funding to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government to help fund 
local training and also support disadvantaged members of the community to get 
access to IT equipment. There was an important role for scrutiny in helping to 
support the work.  
 
The Board expressed concern that 44 percent of people under 60 did not have digital 
skills and queried how the situation had happened as schools had included ICT 
lessons for many years. This issue presented a challenge for the City. The Director 
of Governance reported that it was estimated that 35,000 people did not have basic 
digital skills and also not been online for the last three months and of those groups 
44 percent were under aged 60, which represented 15,400 people under 60 who 
have not been online in the last three months and was the opportunity to work with 
these groups to provide them with the necessary digital skills. The Director of 
Governance commented on the need for people to have basic digital skills to access 
a range of services that were provided online. It was also noted that the 44 percent of 
people who could not get online include people who may not have had a device, or 
the home connectivity required and also that some of these people would have been 
able to use equipment at libraries and Wolverhampton learning platform before 
restrictions were introduced. 
 
The Board discussed the potential benefits for new and existing businesses as a 
result of technological innovations and the importance of Wolverhampton being a 
leader locally in preparing to taking advantage of these new opportunities. The 
Director of Governance endorsed the comments and added the plans reflected the 
ambitious view of the both the Council and the City about the future. The important 
role of scrutiny in shaping the Council’s response to these challenges facing the City 
was highlighted. 

Page 7



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 
Cllr Beverly Momenabadi, Digital Innovation Champion, commented on the 
opportunities presented by improved digital infrastructure and the range of work 
being done in the City and the wider West Midlands to help business and local 
residents to benefit in the future. Cllr Momenabadi commented on the report on 
digital infrastructure strategy that was presented to Stronger City Economy Panel 
which set out how businesses would be affected by changes in technology and how 
this technology could improve Council services and provide alternative options.  
 
Employment – post Covid 
 
The Director of Governance outlined the background to the topic being suggested as 
a cross-cutting theme for Scrutiny Board and the Panels to include on their Work 
Programme. The Director of Governance added the topic had been the subject of 
previous reviews and there was a lot of work ongoing to develop plans in response to 
the economic challenges facing the City post Covid.  
 
The Director of Governance added that the Leader of the Council was Chairing a 
West Midlands group which was looking at the issue of youth unemployment and 
also listed a range of initiatives aimed at improving employment opportunities. 
 
The Board discussed the issue of employment and the potential for choosing this 
topic, but concern was expressed at the scale of the project and the need to avoid 
duplication of work being done elsewhere.  
 
The Board suggested the performance of the Wolverhampton’s Town Deal Board 
and the funding bid for the Town Fund bid could be added to the list of possible 
topics to be scrutinised.  The Director of Governance suggested that the Towns Fund 
should be considered separately and offered to meet with Councillors to discuss the 
issue further. Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration, advised the Board of the 
governance arrangements for Wolverhampton’s Town Deal Board which had been 
set by Government. The submission of the town investment plan would be presented 
on 31 July 2020 to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government and 
a decision was expected late September. 
 
 
Voluntary and Community Partnership Working 
 
The Director of Governance outlined the background to the topic being suggested as 
a cross-cutting theme for Scrutiny Board and the Panels to include on their work 
programme.  
 
The Director suggested that to start work on this issue in September might not be 
timely for the sector as a number of the groups were still involved in supporting 
people affected by the pandemic.  
 
In addition, the University of Wolverhampton, had been commissioned by the Council 
to undertake specific work on how the community and voluntary sector was working. 
The results were expected to be available in the next few months and this could be 
the opportunity for scrutiny to consider this issue. 
 
 

Page 8



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

10 Scrutiny next steps 
David Pattison, Director of Governance, outlined the next steps for scrutiny and the 
proposed way forward. The Board were invited to consider which of the three topics 
should be selected. 
 
The Board supported the topic of digital innovation as being the topic for cross 
cutting theme. The Director of Governance invited members of the Board to indicate 
if there were in favour or against the proposal. The majority of the Board supported 
the proposal.  
 
Resolved: The Board supported the selection of digital innovation and the connected 

city theme and a progress report would be presented at the next 
meeting. 

 
 
The meeting ended at 7.40pm 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC   
 

 
  

 

Scrutiny Board 
6 October 2020 
 

  
Report title Annual Social Care, Public Health and 

Corporate Complaints Report 
  

Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility 

Cllr Paula Brookfield, Cabinet Member for Governance 
 

Wards affected All 

Accountable director David Pattison, Director of Governance 

Originating service Information Governance, Customer Feedback 

Accountable employee(s) Sarah Campbell 

Tel 

Email 

Customer Engagement Manager 

01902 551090 

sarah.campbell@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

 

Leadership Teams - 

Finance, Governance, Regeneration, 

Housing, Adult, Children’s, Public Health,  

City Environment  

 

June and August 

2020 

 

 

Recommendation(s) for action or decision: 

 

The Scrutiny Board is recommended to: 

 
1. Review complaints management and performance for the period 1 April 2019 to 31 

March 2020. 
 

Recommendations for noting: 
 
The Scrutiny Board is asked to note: 

 
1. The Statutory Complaints Activity for Children’s Services, Adult Services and Public 

Health, as detailed in Appendix 3 (Section 1).   
2. All the other complaints activity governed by the Corporate Complaints Procedures as 

detailed in Appendix 3 (Section 2). 
 

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item No: 5



This report is PUBLIC   
 

1.0 Background  
 
1.1 The Council’s Customer Feedback Team handles complaints, compliments and service 

enquiries from members of the public.  Those relating to social care and public health 
matters fall under a statutory framework, while the remainder are handled under the 
council’s corporate policy and procedures. 

 
1.2 This report provides an overview of the complaints, including Local Government and 

Social Care/Housing Ombudsman enquiries received during 1 April 2019 to 31 March 
2020. 

 
2.0 Attachments  
 
2.1 Appended to this covering report are the following documents: 
 
 Appendix 1 – Statutory Customer Feedback Dashboard  
 Appendix 2 – Corporate Customer Feedback Dashboard  
 Appendix 3 – Notes to the dashboard – Statutory (Section 1); Corporate (Section 2), 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) and Housing Ombudsman 
(HO) 

 Appendix 4 – Learning from stage one complaints (corporate, adults, children’s and 
public health) 

3.0 Complaint Training  

3.1 The Customer Feedback Team has compiled mandatory corporate complaint training 
for council officers, which is available via the council’s learning hub.   During 1 April 
2019 to 31 March 2020 the organisation development team has confirmed 87 officers 
have completed the mandatory corporate complaint training.  The team has worked 
with the Council’s organisational development team and is currently compiling an 
online training module for Children’s complaint handling; this will be launched during 
2020.  

4.0   Monitoring Information 

4.1 There are no concerns with the data analysis or evidence of any groups being 
disproportionately affected.  The Council, being under the Public-Sector Equality Duty 
must, on an on- going basis, consider how its policies are working for the diverse 
communities a Council serves. 

5.0 Managing Unreasonable Customer Behaviour Procedure 

5.1 The management of unreasonable complainant behaviour procedure has been active 
since February 2015.  A full review of the Council’s Managing Unreasonable Complainant 
Behaviour procedure has been undertaken and the revised procedure will now be known 
as ‘Managing Unreasonable Customer Behaviour Procedure’ and now includes all 
customers not just complainants. This procedure has been aligned with the Council’s 
Potentially Violent Person (PVP) register and will ensure all officers and councillors are 
aware of the processes and resources available to manage challenging customers and 

Page 12



This report is PUBLIC   
 

the behaviours that they may exhibit. The revised procedure has been agreed by 
Strategic Executive Board (SEB) and a briefing session has been undertaken for all 
Heads of Service. During 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020, the Customer Feedback 
Team has managed a total of 8 cases in line with this procedure. 

6.0 Complaint Policy/Procedures  

  The customer feedback team has carried out a review of the council’s corporate 
complaints policy and Children’s, Adults and Public Health complaint procedures to 
reflect current working practices and legislation.  All policies and procedures were 
presented to Leadership Teams and Cabinet Resources Panel for approval.   

 

7.0 Financial Implications 

7.1 There are no financial implications associated with the recommendation in this 
report. [GE/08062020/W] 

8.0    Legal Implications 

8.1     The statutory complaints procedure must comply with various statutes. These include: 

 Children and Family Services - The Children Act 1989, Representations 
Procedure (England) Regulations 2006.  The Local Authority functions covered 
include services provided under Parts III, IV and V of the Children Act 1989 

 Adult Social Care – The Local Authority Social Services and National Health 
Service Complaints (England) Regulations 2009; which came into force on 
1 April 2009. 

 Public Health - The NHS Bodies and Local Authorities (Partnership Arrangements, 
Care Trusts, Public Health and Local Healthwatch) Regulations 2012. 

Legal Code: [TS/08062020/R]                          

9.0    Equalities Implications 

9.1 There are no equalities implications associated with this report. 

10.0   Environmental Implications 
 
10.1 There are no environmental implications associated with this report. 
 
11.0   Human Resources Implications 
 
11.1 There are no human resource implications associated with this report. 
 
12.0   Corporate Landlord Implications 
 

Page 13



This report is PUBLIC   
 

12.1 There are no corporate landlord implications associated with this report. 
 
13.0 Health and Wellbeing Implications 
 
13.1 The complaints element of the social care and corporate procedure is part of a wider 

assurance process supporting quality in service delivery standards.  This can then be a 
positive experience for customers and contribute to their health and well-being.  For 
those occasions where the experience which has led to a complaint is a less positive 
one, then there is an opportunity for appropriate action or redress so that the health and 
well-being of the complainant and/or relevant others is secured.  The compliments 
process allows customers to note great practice by the Council; positive experience of 
officers working in many different settings will support improved experience of health and 
well-being for individuals as well as for staff who can be satisfied that their work is 
appreciated. 

14.0   Schedule of Background Papers 
 
14.1 None for consideration. 

 

 

Page 14



Formal	Complaints	
Received

See	Appendix	3	(1.2)

58
Average	Complaint	
Response	Time	
See	Appendix	3	
(1.3	and	1.4)

11
DAYS

Complaints	where	the	council	
is	at	fault	(upheld)	

Cases	closed	during 19/20
See	Learning	Appendix	4

8
(15%)

Issues	have	been	identified	
from	upheld	complaints	and	
have	been	addressed;	
remedies	have	been	provided	
to	the	customers	by	
apologising	and	informing	
them	of	the	improvements	
that	have	been	made.

Complaints	where	the	council	is	
partially	at	fault		

Cases	closed	during	19/20

26
(49%)

Complaints	where	
the	council	is	not	at	fault	
Cases	closed	during	19/20

19
(36%)

Stage	1	Complaints	
Comparison

See	Appendix	3	(1.2)

Response	Timescales	for	complaints	
closed	during	2019/20	

See	Appendix	3	(1.3	and	1.4)
21	days	or	
over	
timescale

Within
10	days	
timescale

11-20	days	
timescale

1620

17

(30%)

(32%)

(38%)
70

58

2018/19

2019/20

This represents a 
decrease of

12

16
DAYS

Statutory	
complaints

Corporate	
complaints

Annual (1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020)

Appendix 1 Statutory Customer Feedback 
Children’s Services 

P
age 15



Annual (1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020)

Children’s Services 
Statutory Customer Feedback

2018/19 2019/20

Stage	1	Complaints	Received
Breakdown	by	Service	Area		
Appendix	3	(1.2)

Strengthening	Families

Compliments			
Appendix	3	(1.8)

Informal	Complaints	
Appendix	3	(1.1)

107 48

C&YPiC Inclusion	Support

70 58

Stage	2	Complaints	Comparison	– Annual	Breakdown
9

2018/19 2019/20

8	Corporate	procedure
1	Statutory	procedure 5	Corporate	procedure

0	Statutory	procedure

5

Stage	3	Complaints	Comparison	- Annual	Breakdown

2019/20

0

2018/19

2

Appendix 1
Stage	1	Complaints	Comparison	– Annual	Breakdown	

Appendix	3	(1.2)

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

7

4 4

2 2
1 1 1

3

1 1

5 5

3

8

3

5

2

P
age 16



Appendix 1

Breakdown	by	Quarter

0

10

20

30

2018/19

Breakdown	by	Quarter

0

2

4

2018/19

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

1

Q
4

Breakdown	by	Quarter

0

1

2

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

Q
4

1

16 21

5

1

16

1

2

0

16

0

2019/20

2019/20

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

2

Q
4

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3	
	

Q
4

0

26

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

Q
4

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

Q
4

6

Stage	1	Complaints	Comparison	– Appendix	3	(1.2)

11

Stage	2	Complaints	Comparison	– Appendix	3	(1.5)

0

Stage	3	Complaints	Comparison	– Appendix	3	(1.6)

0

2018/19 2019/20

10

0

3

0

0

11

Annual (1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020)

Annual	Stage	1	Complaints	Received	
Breakdown	by	Category

3

19

13

5

4

2

1

2

5

1

1

1

1

Charges/Fees

Communication/Info

Quality	of	Service

Conduct/Attitude

Disagree	with	Policy/Criteria

Disagree	with	Assessment

Breach	of	Confidentiality	

Damage/loss

Delay	in	Service/Resource

Contact	arrangements

Failure	in	service

Delay	in	assessment

Non-availability	in	service

Statutory Customer Feedback 
Children’s Services 

P
age 17



9

Formal	Complaints	Received	
See	Appendix	3	(3.2)

53

Average	Complaint	
Response	Time	

See	Appendix	3	(3.4)

11
DAYS

Complaints	where	the	council	
is	at	fault	(upheld)	

Cases	closed	during	19/20	
See	Learning	Appendix	4

3
(7%)

Issues	have	been	identified	
from	upheld	complaints	and	
have	been	addressed;	
remedies	have	been	provided	
to	the	customers	by	
apologising	and	informing	
them	of	the	improvements	
that	have	been	made.

Complaints	where	the	council	is	
partially	at	fault	

Cases	closed	during	19/20

17
(41%)

Complaints	where	the	council	is	
not	at	fault	

Cases	closed	during	19/20

22
(52%)

Stage	1	Complaints	
Comparison

See	Appendix	3	(3.2)

Response	Timescales	for	complaints	
closed	during	2019/20	
See	Appendix	3	(3.4)	

Within
10	days	
timescale

11-20	days	
timescale

16
(38%)

74

53

2018/19

2019/2021

This represents a 
decrease of

21

5
12%

21	days	or	over	
timescale

Annual (1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020)

Adult Services and Public Health
Statutory Customer Feedback

(50%)

Appendix 1

P
age 18



Stage	1	Complaints	Received	Breakdown	by	Service	Area	- See	Appendix	3	(3.2)

Disability	and	Mental	Health

Contracted	/	Independent

Older	People

Compliments	
Appendix	3	(3.5)

Informal	
Complaints

Appendix	3	(3.1)

246 43

Public	Health	and	Wellbeing

Annual (1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020)

Adult Services and Public Health
Statutory Customer FeedbackAppendix 1

Stage	1	Complaints	Comparison	- Annual	Breakdown

2018/19 2019/20

74 53

3
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

2 2
1 1

11

6

3

8

1 1
3

1
2

CM
	C
om

m
un

ity
	

Ca
re Ag
in
ca
re

So
la
ce
	C
om

m
un

ity

Ce
da
r	G

ra
ng
e	
Ca
re
	

Ho
m
e

Ha
nd

le
	W

ith
	C
ar
e

M
id
la
nd

	H
ea
rt
	

St
	M

at
th
ew

's	
Pl
ac
e

Th
er
ap
y	

M
AS

H

Di
re
ct
	P
ay
m
en

t

W
el
fa
re
	R
ig
ht
s

Er
ne

st
	B
ol
d

Br
ad
le
y	
RC

Ad
ul
t	C

om
m
un

ity
	

Te
am

	E
as
t

Ad
ul
t	C

om
m
un

ity
	

Te
am

	W
es
t

Ad
ul
t	C

om
m
un

ity
	

Te
am

	N
or
th

He
al
th
	a
nd

	S
oc
ia
l	

Ca
re
	T
ea
m HA

RP

Ad
ap
ta
tio

ns

Ca
re
r	S

up
po

rt
	

Te
am

Be
rt
	W

ill
ia
m
s	

Le
isu

re
	C
en

tr
e

Di
sa
bi
lit
y	
an
d	

M
en

ta
l	H

ea
lth

	…

P
age 19



Stage	1	Complaints	Comparison
Breakdown	by	Quarter	-See	Appendix	3	(3.2)

0

10

20

30

40

2018/19

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

25

Social	Care Public	Health

17

18

1

15

14
11
14

1

22
21

20
20

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

19

20

1

2019/20

11
11

Statutory Customer Feedback
Adult Services and Public HealthAppendix 1

17
17

5
5

Annual	Stage	1	Complaints	Received	
Breakdown	by	Category

Annual (1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020)

P
age 20



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

SECTION 1:   
Children’s Services, Adult Services and Public Health Complaints Activity  
1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 

1.0     Children’s Services – Complaint Activity 

 1.1 Informal Complaints 

   The complaint regulations provide an opportunity for children/young people, parents and 
carers to raise issues of concern without those matters being treated as formal 
complaints as long as they are speedily and effectively addressed.  These are referred to 
as informal complaints; 48 informal complaints were received during 1 April 2019 to 31 
March 2020 compared to 68 received during 2018/19; a decrease of 20 cases. 

 1.2 Stage One Complaints  

    During 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 the council received 58 stage one Children’s 
Services complaints compared to 70 during 2018/19, a decrease of 12 cases.  The 58 
complaints received during this period refer to 18 separate service areas.   No service 
area received a disproportionate amount of complaints, the highest figure of 8 cases 
referred to Children and Young People in Care Team 1.  In some cases, this has 
followed extensive but unsuccessful attempts to resolve some of those complaints 
informally. 

 1.3 Timescales   

   Overall, 53 complaints were responded to and concluded during 1 April 2019 to 31 March 
2020.  16 complaints were responded to within 10 working days, 17 within 11-20 working 
days, and the remaining 20 in just over 21 working days. Cases responded to 21 days or 
over timescale are due to various reasons for example, complex cases, availability of 
resources.  In these circumstances, complainants are regularly updated on the progress 
of their complaint.  

1.4 However, it should be noted that of the 53 complaints closed and resolved during this 
period 22 were dealt with in accordance with the Children’s Act, with an average 
timescale of 11 working days and 31 complaints were dealt with in accordance with the 
Corporate Complaints Policy (Non-Children’s Act) which states complaints should be 
responded to within 21 calendar days; the average timescale was 16 calendar days.   

   Out of the 53 complaints closed and resolved, eight cases were upheld (at fault), 26 
cases were partially upheld (partially at fault) and 19 cases not upheld (not at fault). 

 1.5 Stage Two Complaints    

During this period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020, we have received no statutory stage 
two complaints which are investigated in accordance with the Children’s Statutory 
complaints procedure and, therefore, there were no financial implications for Children’s 
Services.  This is in comparison to one case received during 2018/19. 

During this period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020, we have received five children’s stage 
two complaints which were dealt with in accordance with our Corporate Complaints policy 
and procedure.  This is in comparison to eight cases received during 18/19.  Out of five 

Page 21



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

stage two cases received during 19/20 two cases were upheld and one case partially 
upheld.   

Stage two complaints received as follows: 

 Children and Young People in Care – One complaint received for Adoption Team 
in relation to unnecessary delays and poor communication; outcome upheld 
appropriate remedies/resolution and learning has been carried out.  

 Children and Young People in Care – One complaint received for Looked After 
Children Team 1 in relation to delays in replacing missing toys; outcome upheld, 
appropriate remedies and learning has been carried out. 

 Adoption@Heart – One complaint received for Adoption@Heart in relation to the 
home visit for interest to adopt and delays in responding to correspondence; 
outcome partially upheld; appropriate remedies and learning has been carried out 

 Children and Young People in Care - One complaint received for fostering was in 
relation to conduct of social work manager; outcome not upheld 

 Strengthening Families - One complaint received for Child Protection was in 
relation to a home visit, conduct of social work and inaccuracies made by social 
worker; outcome not upheld.  

Several other complaints that could have proceeded down this route were resolved after 
significant intervention, mediation and problem solving with the relevant service and 
customer feedback team.   

1.6    Stage Three Complaints 

Where a statutory children’s stage two complaint investigation has been carried out and 
the complainant remains dissatisfied, they have the right to request matters proceed to the 
final stage of the statutory complaint procedure; a stage three Independent Complaint 
Review Panel.  During 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 no complaints escalated to a stage 
three panel during this period. 

 

1.7 Complaint Category 
 
 These are the headings under which we register the complaint against, based on the 

complaint details received – see attached Dashboard. 

1.8 Compliments 

All compliments are recorded by the Customer Feedback Team and reported as part of 
the team’s annual monitoring process.  During this period, a pleasing 107 compliments 
were received for Children’s Services, compared to 105 during 1 April 2019 to 31 March 
2019.  Disabled and Young People Team (DC&YP) and Safeguarding Team both 
received 13 followed by Children and Young People in Care (C&YPiC) Team 1 received 
9 compliments. 

2.0 Public Health Complaints  
 
2.1 Regionally and nationally, councils receive very few complaints in relation to Public 

Health Services. A typical complaint would be where a council has commissioned a 
service for local people through a Clinic or GP practice. Complaints in relation to GP’s 
and Hospitals are dealt with through a separate complaint process managed by Health 

Page 22



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

Services.  In relation to Public Health services, there has been one complaint received 
during 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 in relation to Bert Williams Leisure Centre. 

 
3.0 Adult Social Care Complaints  

3.1 Informal Complaints 

   During 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 the council received 43 informal complaints which 
were resolved at service level without going through the formal route. This was compared 
to 78 informal complaints received during 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019, a decrease of 
35 cases. 

3.2 Stage One Complaints 

During 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 the council received 53 formal complaints 
compared with 74 during 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019; representing a decrease of 21 
complaints during this period.  Out of the 53 formal complaints received, nine complaints 
were received in relation to contracted/independent services.  This is where Adult Social 
Care commission an independent agency to deliver a service on its behalf.  The 53 
complaints received covered 22 separate service areas; the highest figure of 11 
complaints referred to the Adult Community Team East. In some cases, this has followed 
extensive but unsuccessful attempts to resolve some of those complaints informally. 

 
3.3 Complaint Category 
 
 These are the headings under which we register the complaint against, based on the 

complaint details received – see attached Dashboard. 
 

3.4 Timescales 
 

Overall, 42 complaints were responded to and concluded during 1 April 2019 to 31 March 
2020.  21 complaints were responded to within 10 working days, 16 within 11-20 working 
days and five complaints were responded to over 21 working days.  The average number 
of days to respond and close all complaints over the term was 11 days.  Cases 
responded to 21 days or over timescale are due to various reasons for example, complex 
cases, availability of resources.  In these circumstances, complainants are regularly 
updated on the progress of their complaint.  Out of the 42 cases closed and resolved, 3 
cases were upheld, 17 cases partially upheld and 22 cases not upheld. 

3.5 Compliments 

   All compliments are recorded by the Customer Feedback Team and reported as part of 
the team’s annual monitoring process.  246 compliments were received during 1 April 
2019 to 31 March 2020 relating to Adult Services compared to 161 during 1 April 2018 to 
31 March 2019.   Welfare Rights received 64 compliments followed by Bradley Resource 
Centre received 33 compliments and Adult Locality Team West received 17 compliments. 

 

3.6 Areas of Learning from Complaints 

   See Appendix 4 for stage 1 learning. 

Page 23



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

SECTION 2:  Corporate Complaints Activity, Local Government and 
Social Care Ombudsman and Housing Ombudsman Complaints 
Activity 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 
 

4.0 Corporate Complaints Activity, Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 
and Housing Ombudsman 

 

4.1 Informal service requests/enquiries 

 
  The customer feedback team works alongside the person complaining and the service 

involved, to resolve the complaint informally, preventing it becoming a formal complaint. It 
should be noted that 1,021 service request enquiries were logged with the customer 
feedback team during 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020, compared to 1,223 received during 
1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.  These types of enquiries are varied, for example, missed 
bin collection, parking, litter, appeals; all enquiries were logged and resolved informally, 
or sign posted to the correct process without going through the corporate complaints 
procedure, therefore providing a swift outcome and resolution for the customer. 

4.2  Corporate stage 1 complaints  

   During 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 the council received 185 stage one corporate 
complaints compared to 288 during 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 a decrease of 103 
cases.  Out of the 185 received, 54 were upheld (at fault). The 185 complaints covering 
27 separate service areas, the highest figure of 56 complaints referring to Waste 
Management, Revenues and Benefits received 30 and Customer Services received 29.  
In some cases, this has followed extensive but unsuccessful attempts to resolve some of 
those matters at service level. 

4.3 Corporate Complaint Category 

   During 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 the main issue of complaint involved failure to 
provide a service (75), followed by failure to achieve standards/quality (34), failure to 
consider relevant matters (22), conduct of employees (21), delays in responding or 
administrative (16), dissatisfaction of council policies (13), and failure to fulfil statutory 
responsibilities (4).  

4.4  Corporate Timescales 

   The average response time for responding to each complaint is 14 days for this period; 
this is in comparison to 13 days for 2018/19.  The response timescale for stage 1 
complaints responding within 21 calendar days is 92%; 171 cases were responded to 
within 21 calendar days and 14 cases responded outside of this timescale.  The target of 
95% response time has therefore not been achieved; the Customer Feedback Team will 
continue to monitor this response time and work with service groups to improve this 
timescale. 

 
4.5 Stage 2 corporate complaints   
 
  During 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 the council received 19 stage two corporate 

complaints compared to 17 cases for 18/19, an increase of two cases.  Out of the 19 

Page 24



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

cases received, four cases were upheld (at fault), four cases were partially upheld 
(partially at fault) and 11 cases not upheld (not at fault).  

 
  Stage two complaints received as follows: 
 

City Environment  
 

 One complaint received for Environmental Protection in relation to garden 
remediation/restoration works, in particular front drain on driveway; outcome not 
upheld  

 One complaint received for Environmental Protection in relation to fly tipping and 
rubbish on the highway; outcome not upheld 

 One complaint received for Environmental Protection in relation to officer conduct at 
site visit and delays in responding; outcome partially upheld; action plan compiled 
and appropriate remedies/resolution carried out by the service  

 One complaint received for Environmental Protection in relation to noise and air 
pollution outside a factory; outcome not upheld, however, the service has arranged  
mediation service for complainants 

 One complaint received for Customer Services in relation direct debit incorrectly set 
up for customer; outcome upheld; action plan compiled and appropriate remedies/ 
learning has been undertaken with the service  

 One complaint received for Waste Management in relation to changes in refuse 
collection; outcome not upheld 

 One complaint received for Waste Management in relation to missed garden waste 
collection; outcome upheld; action plan compiled and appropriate remedies/learning 
has been undertaken with the service  

 One complaint received for Arboriculture Department in relation to 
maintenance/health and safety of a tree at the front of a property; outcome not 
upheld 

 One complaint received for Arboriculture Department in relation to the maintenance 
of trees; outcome not upheld 

 One complaint received for Licensing in relation to unclear guidelines on website in 
relation to renewing a vehicle plate; outcome upheld; action plan compiled and 
appropriate remedies/ learning has been undertaken with the service  

 One complaint received for Parking Services in relation to conduct of enforcement 
officer and process/procedure of enforcement visit; outcome not upheld 

 
  Finance 
 

 One complaint received for Revenues and Benefits in relation to council tax liability; 
outcome not upheld  

 One complaint received for Revenues and Benefits in relation to housing benefit 
payments made to tenant and receipt of safeguarding request; outcome partially 
upheld; action plan compiled and appropriate remedies/ learning has been 
undertaken with the service 

 One complaint received for Revenues and Benefits/ Customer Services in relation to 
errors made by the Council Tax department resulting in enforcement action; 
outcome upheld; action plan compiled and appropriate remedies/learning has been 
undertaken with the service 

 
 

Page 25



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

 
 
Regeneration  
 

 One complaint received for Planning Department in relation to new development 
site; outcome not upheld 

 One complaint received for Planning Department in relation to a residential 
development; outcome not upheld. 

 One complaint received for Planning Department in relation to decision to build a 
larger than planned house at the rear of a property; outcome not upheld 

 One complaint received for Facilities Department in relation to charges for the toilets 
at West Park and cleanliness of toilets at East Park; outcome partially upheld; action 
plan compiled and appropriate remedies/learning has been undertaken with the 
service 

 
  Education/Children Services  
 

 One complaint received for the Senstart Team in relation to EHCP plan and Senstart 
team; outcome partially upheld; action plan compiled and appropriate remedies/ 
learning has been undertaken with the service 

 
4.6     Corporate Compliments 

   All compliments are recorded by the Customer Feedback Team and reported as part of 
the team’s annual monitoring process.  During 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 the council 
has received 230 compliments, a decrease in comparison to 2018/19. Planning received 
88, followed by Bereavement 50 and Customer Services 26. 

 
4.7 Area of Learning for Corporate Complaints 
 

See Appendix 4 for stage one learning. 
 

5.0 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman/Housing Ombudsman  
 
5.1 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Enquiries (LGSCO)  
 

During 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 the council received 10 Local Government and 
Social Care Ombudsman enquiries. 

 
 Children’s Services received four complaints as follows: 
 

 Children and Young People in Care – one complaint in relation to no 
communication since January 2019 with Children's Services in relation 
complainant's child, who is under a care order; outcome upheld; at fault and 
injustice; action plan compiled and appropriate remedies/ learning has been 
undertaken with the service 

 Children and Young People in Care – one complaint in relation to council has 
failed to fully implement the recommendations made by the stage three review 
panel; outcome upheld; maladministration and injustice; action plan compiled and 
appropriate remedies/ learning has been undertaken with the service 

 Children and Young People in Care – one complaint in relation to adoption 
process, failure to communicate, failure to inform adoption was proceeding as 

Page 26



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

twin rather than single tracked process, failure to complete paperwork and failure 
to attend court; outcome; upheld, maladministration and injustice; action plan 
compiled and appropriate remedies/ learning has been undertaken with the 
service 

 Strengthening Families – one complaint about the council’s actions leading up to 
a court hearing; outcome draft decision received, awaiting final report from the 
Ombudsman  

 
Adult Services received two complaints as follows: 
 

 Adult Services West Team – one complaint in relation to council did not properly 
inform family member of changes to individual’s respite care; outcome not upheld, 
no maladministration 

 Adult Service; West Team – one complaint in relation to council failing to offer a 
needs assessment following surgery which left individual temporarily immobile; 
this caused stress and upset as they received no assistance to procure needed 
equipment or care; outcome not upheld, no maladministration 

 
Wolverhampton Homes received two complaints as follows: 
 

 Wolverhampton Homes – one complaint in relation to council failed to take 
appropriate action in respect of a housing and homelessness situation; outcome 
not upheld, no maladministration 

 Wolverhampton Homes – one complaint in relation to ASB complaint; outcome not 
upheld, no maladministration 

 
City Environment receive one complaint as follows: 
 

 Licensing – one complaint in relation to the clarity of information on the council’s 
application form for private vehicle licence; therefore council only granted a 
licence for two months; outcome upheld, maladministration and injustice; action 
plan compiled and appropriate remedies/ learning has been undertaken with the 
service 

 
Finance received one complaint as follows: 
 

 Revenues and Benefits – one complaint in relation to the council failing to update 
the customer’s address and lack of communication for outstanding council tax 
liability; outcome upheld, maladministration and injustice; action plan compiled 
and appropriate remedies/learning has been undertaken with the service 

 
During 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 Children’s Services received one published report 
from the LGSCO; a former foster carer complained that the council failed to provide 
appropriate financial support to take three looked after children to school.   The council 
accepted the findings of the LGSCO and has reimbursed the foster carer with travel 
allowance for the period in question; the council has also made an additional payment for 
her time, trouble and inconvenience.  The foster carer fees and allowances policy has 
been updated to ensure eligible foster children receive free home to school transport. 
The council has also written to all foster carers to confirm these changes and invited any 
foster carers who feel they may have been financially disadvantaged by the previous 
arrangements to contact us to arrange appropriate financial payments. 

 

Page 27



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

5.2      Housing Ombudsman Enquiries  
 
 During 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 the council received seven enquiries from the 

Housing Ombudsman for Wolverhampton Homes as follows: 
 

 One complaint received in relation to the council’s response to a request to have 
an electrical appliance in the property re-sited into the kitchen, as it currently 
stands in front of a back door, blocking the exit; outcome no maladministration 

 One complaint received in relation to the landlord’s response to their reports of 
occupancy and succession of tenancy rights; outcome no maladministration 

 One complaint received in relation to landlord’s response to a complaint about 
communal garden upkeep and tree maintenance; outcome no maladministration 

 One complaint received in relation to the landlord's response to complaint about 
damp and cold in the property; outcome service failure, no maladministration. 
Action plan compiled and appropriate remedies carried out in relation to service 
failure 

 One complaint received in relation to the landlord’s response to the level of damp/ 
mould and moisture; outcome no maladministration 

 One complaint received in relation to installation of a driveway and hard standing 
at the property and for the landlord to replace some fencing at the property; 
outcome no maladministration; complainant has requested a review of the 
Housing Ombudsman’s decision and we are currently awaiting the outcome 

 One complaint received in relation to how the council has dealt with reports of 
Anti-Social Behaviour; outcome service failure, no maladministration. Action plan 
compiled and appropriate remedies carried out in relation to service failure. 
 

5.3 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) assessment enquiries  
 

During 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 the council received 39 Local Government and 
Social Care Ombudsman assessment enquiries as follows: 

 

 Children’s Services received eight cases; Children and Young People in Care 
received three, Strengthening Families received three, Adoption at Heart one and 
SEND Team one 

 Finance received nine cases; eight cases in relation to Revenues and Benefits 
and one case for Risk and Insurance  

 City Environment received nine cases; two cases in relation to Arbor Team, two 
cases in relation to Environmental Crime, two cases for Parking Services, one 
case for Street Cleansing, one case for Licensing and one case for Transportation 

 Adult Services received five cases; three cases for West team, one for Community 
Support and one case for Health and Social Care team  

 Wolverhampton Homes received four cases; one case for Homeless Team, one 
case for Anti-Social Behaviour Team, one case for Adaptions Team and one case 
in relation to support for a housing case 

 Regeneration received two cases in relation to Planning Department  

 Housing received one case in relation to Facilities Team   

 Governance received one case in relation to Democratic Support 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

5.4 Housing Ombudsman assessment enquiries  
 
 During 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 the council received 12 Housing Ombudsman 

assessment enquiries for Wolverhampton Homes as follows: 
 

 Five complaints in relation to anti-social behaviour/noise enquiries 

 One premature complaint  

 Two complaints in relation to disrepair issues 

 One complaint in relation to right of access 

 One complaint in relation to failure to update status of complaint  

 One complaint in relation to court dispute  

 One complaint in relation to refusal to escalate complaint  
 
5.5 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Annual Review Letter 2019/20 
 

The Ombudsman publishes annual complaint statistics for each local authority in 
England.  The Ombudsman received 61 complaints and enquiries in 2019/20 in relation 
to this council; this is in comparison to 71 complaints and enquiries received during 
2018/19.  This process involves referring complaints back to the council for local 
resolution, no further action, invalid/incomplete complaints, advice given and detailed 
investigations.  From the 61 enquiries received from the Ombudsman, they carried out 12 
detailed investigations of the complaints they received about the City of Wolverhampton 
Council for 2019/20; this is in comparison to 19 detailed investigations received for 
2018/19.  

Out of the 12 detailed investigations carried out, the Ombudsman has recorded seven 
cases (58%) findings of fault (upheld) for the council during 2019/20 (this compares to 
an average of 67% in similar authorities).  The annual report confirms that the council is 
100% compliant with carrying out the Ombudsman’s upheld recommendations. 

 
City of Wolverhampton Council’s performance for 2019/20 can be compared with 
neighbouring authorities via the Ombudsman’s interactive map; this interactive map 
shows annual performance data for all councils in England, with links to published 
decision statements, public interest report, annual letters and information about service 
improvements that have been agreed by each council. This interactive tool assists the 
council to monitor the improvements they agree to make following the Ombudsman’s 
investigations, as well as supporting scrutiny of local services. See link to interactive map 
as follows: https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance 

 
The Ombudsman has confirmed that the upheld numbers which they report will not 
necessarily match the complaints data that we hold as statistics are recorded by the 
Ombudsman in different business periods.  

 
6.0 Learning/Action Plans  

 

Customer Feedback Team and Directorates are committed to learning from customer 

feedback and require the completion of a tracking form/learning log from each complaint 

investigated at all stages.  Where complaints highlight that things have gone wrong, 

heads of service, managers and the customer feedback team are required to identify 

these areas, implement remedies and review processes/procedures where necessary. 

 

Page 29

https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance


APPENDIX 3 
 

 

When a complaint is upheld (council at fault) and the findings of a subsequent 

investigation is for a financial remedy, change to policy or service delivery, the Customer 

Feedback Team produce an action plan report. Recommendations within these reports 

are agreed with appropriate Heads of Service and shared with the relevant Service 

Manager/Director to ensure appropriate remedies and changes to policy/service delivery 

are implemented. 

  See attached Appendix 4, Learning dashboard  

 

  

 

 

 

Page 30



Annual Report – 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020

Action Plans/Learning from complaints - When a complaint is upheld (Council at fault) and the findings of a 

subsequent investigation is for a change to policy or service delivery, the Customer Feedback Team produce an action plan 
report and follow up with the service any learning/action that needs to be carried out. Recommendations within these reports 
are agreed with appropriate Heads of Service and shared with the relevant Director.   Please see below a few examples of 
stage 1 complaint learning 

Learning from Complaints
Appendix 4 Customer Feedback

Children’s Services – Stage one complaint learning
• Complaint about the lack of adequate support and service received in relation to foster son moving out and the notice 

process. Learning –Agreed immediate actions and to meeting arranged to meet with complainant to look at future 
planning.

• Complaint received in relation to delays in processing request for children’s passport.  Learning – A change and 
review of admin system.

• Complaint in relation to the administration of savings whilst in care.  Learning – The Local Authority is currently 
developing a new system of saving for Young People (YP) where the YP will have their own Credit Union account 
where all savings will be paid into and held centrally.

Adult Services – Stage one complaint learning
• Complaint regarding errors contained in new care plan.  Learning - Care Plan to be amended accordingly
• Complaint in relation to the care received from HARP.  Learning – To work in accordance with Operational Standards 

which will be monitored by management and Customer Information Records to be amended accordingly.  Staff to be 
mindful regarding information sharing to ensure confidentiality and protecting information.  Managers to ensure 
sufficient Team Leaders are on Duty to ensure the safe and effective running of the service; Management Team to risk 
manage and prioritise workload.

• Complaint in relation to the service provided by a commissioned care home. Learning – Quality Assurance and 
Compliance Team are continuously monitoring the home to maintain and improve the quality of care provided.  

P
age 31



Quarter 1 (April – June 2019)

Action Plans/Learning from complaints - When a complaint is upheld (Council at fault) and the findings of a 

subsequent investigation is for a change to policy or service delivery, the Customer Feedback Team produce an action plan 
report and follow up with the service any learning/action that needs to be carried out. Recommendations within these reports 
are agreed with appropriate Heads of Service and shared with the relevant Director.   Please see below a few examples of 
stage 1 complaint learning 

Learning from Complaints
Appendix 4 Customer Feedback

Corporate Complaints – Stage one complaint learning 
• Customer called in relation to European Elections to request a proxy vote; requested documentation, however, this did 

not arrive in the post; customer called again and was informed that it was too late to vote and call should have been 
transferred to electoral; customer was unable to vote and was extremely unhappy.  Learning – An apology was issued 
to the customer and all officers have been reminded of the importance of acting upon all communications received, 
including any temporary changes to procedures and record keeping of call logs, enabling us to deal with all customer 
enquiries correctly

• Customer called in relation to incorrect bin removed from property, replacement bin not delivered as per request and 
waste crew entered private gate to retrieve the bin.  Learning – An apology was issued to the complainant and 
arrangements were carried out for the correct bins to be delivered.  The service has carried out training with the 
waste officers and reinforced that correct procedures are to be followed; guidelines have also been issued to officers 
in relation to entering private property 

• Complaint received in relation to renewal of taxi licence – Learning – Licensing has reviewed and changed the 
application process to prevent delays; a gesture of goodwill has been offered to the customer as a remedy to this 
complaint.

Annual Report – 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020

P
age 32



Annual Corporate Complaints

Stage 1

185

Response Timescales
See Appendix 3 (4.4)

Average Complaint 
Response Time

See Appendix 3 (4.4)

Complaints where the Council is at fault 
(upheld) See Learning Appendix 4

Complaints where the 
Council is not at fault

Stage 1 Complaints 
Comparison for 2019/2020 

See Appendix 3 (4.2) 

Complaints received 
decreased by

92%
Responded to within 

timescales
(Target: 95%)

14
DAYS

Issues have been identified from 54 upheld 
complaints and have been addressed; remedies 
have been provided to the customers by apologising 
and informing them of the improvements that have 
been made.

103
In comparison to 2018/19 a 

decrease has been seen in the 
number of stage one complaints 

received.

Cases
2019/20

288

185

Complaints Received 
See Appendix 3 (4.2 and 4.3)

54
(29%)

8% 
Not 

responded to
within 

timescales

(71%)

2018/19

Annual Report (1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020)

Appendix 2

131

P
age 33



Annual 
Compliments Received  

See Appendix 3 (4.6)

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

1
8

/1
9

53

Appendix 2

Stage 1 Complaints Comparison 
See Appendix 3 (4.2 and 4.3)

Breakdown by Quarter

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
8

/1
9

55

73

35

69

93

Annual 
Service Requests

Appendix 4.1230 1,021

43
2

0
1

9
/2

0
52

Annual Report (1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020)

Stage 1

Annual Corporate Complaints

Stage 1 Complaints
Breakdown by Directorate  - See Appendix 3 (4.2 and 4.3)

City Environment

Finance

Children’s 
(Education)

Regeneration

Housing 

Governance

136

31

7

5

5

1

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

2
0

1
9

/2
0

P
age 34



Annual Corporate Complaints
Stage 1

Stage 1 Complaints Received

Breakdown by Service Area
Complaints were not upheld unless otherwise indicated - See Appendix 3 (4.2 and 4.3)
.

(1
6

 U
p

h
el

d
)

Appendix 2
Annual Report (1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020)

6

3
1

3
1

29

1

8

3 3 2 2

12

1 2 1 1
3 2 3

30

3
1

6

1 1

56

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

(1
 U

p
h

el
d

)

(1
 U

p
h

el
d

)

(3
 U

p
h

el
d

)

(1
1

 U
p

h
el

d
)

(1
 U

p
h

el
d

)

(1
 U

p
h

el
d

)

(1
 U

p
h

el
d

)

(1
 U

p
h

el
d

)

(1
 U

p
h

el
d

)

(2
 U

p
h

el
d

)

(1
0

 U
p

h
el

d
)

(1
 U

p
h

el
d

)

(4
 U

p
h

el
d

)

P
age 35



Stage 2 Corporate Complaints 
See Appendix 3 (4.5)

LGSCO enquiries 
See Appendix 3 (5.1 and 5.3)

2018/19

2019/20 19

2018/19

2019/20

26

10

4 4 11

Upheld Part 
Upheld

Not 
Upheld

(Council 
at fault) (Council 

partly at 
fault)

(Council 
not at 
fault)

Figures decreased for 2019/20 
compared to 2018/19. Customer 
Feedback team has also received 
39 initial LGSCO assessment 
enquiries 2019/20.

Appendix 2

HO enquiries  
See Appendix 3 (5.2 and 5.4)

Figures increased by one case for 
2019/20 compared to 2018/19. 
Customer Feedback team has 
also received 12 initial HO 
assessment enquiries for 
2019/20.

2018/19

2019/20

6

7

17

Customer Feedback

Annual - Stage 2 Corporate Complaints, 

Local Government and Social Care (LGSCO) and 

Housing Ombudsman (HO) Enquiries

Appendix 2
Annual Report (1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020)

P
age 36



This report is PUBLIC 

 

 

 

Scrutiny Board  
6 October 2020 

 

Report title Community Asset Transfer – Policy and 
Strategy Review 

 Decision designation AMBER 

Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility 

Councillor Jacqueline Sweetman 
City Assets and Housing 

Key decision Yes 

In forward plan Yes 

Wards affected All Wards 

Accountable Director Mark Taylor, Deputy Chief Executive 

Originating service Assets 

Accountable employee Luke Dove 
Tel 
Email 

Strategic Asset Manager, Assets  
01902 557121 
Luke.Dove@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Report to be/has been 
considered by 
 

Strategic Executive Board 
Scrutiny Board 
Cabinet  
 
 

11 February 2020 
6 October 2020 
11 November 2020 
 
 

 
Recommendation for decision: 
 
The Scrutiny Panel is recommended to: 
 

1. Consider the revised Community Asset Transfer Strategy and endorse its progression to 
Cabinet for approval. 

  

Page 37

Agenda Item No: 6



This report is PUBLIC 

 

 

1.0 Purpose 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to highlight the most significant changes to the revised 
Community Asset Transfer Strategy and seek the panels endorsement of the same to 
progress to Cabinet for approval. 

 
2.0 Background 
 
2.1 A Community Asset Transfer (CAT) is where a public body transfers the management 

and/or ownership of an asset, sometimes including associated services to a voluntary 
community organisation (VCO). 

 
2.2 The CAT Strategy provides a clear guidance document for both the public body 

transferring the asset and VCO taking on the same in line with relevant legislation and 
policies. 

 
2.3 In the current climate a CAT supports community empowerment and offers an 

opportunity for assets and/or services to be retained in areas that the Council may not be 
able to develop or continue to fund itself. It also allows for a more innovative approach to 
be explored through community lead initiatives with the support of the Council  

 

2.4 The Council currently have an existing CAT Strategy, however given the fluid nature of 

both the economic and social environments, an updated version is required to ensure all 

applicable outcomes are addressed in line with current Council policies and meets the 

needs of both the public body and VCO’s.  

 
3.0 Key updates to new strategy 
 
3.1 The new CAT Strategy is customer focused and is intended as a guidance document to 

inform its users. 
 
3.2 It provides clear direction on what a CAT involves for all parties including highlighting 

associated benefits and risks so that there is complete transparency from the outset. 
 
3.3 Provides a clear timeline for the CAT process which is supported by the Council’s 

governance and recently updated asset management and disposal process to allow 
management of stakeholder expectation and appropriate forward planning 

 
3.4 The new Strategy is Flexible to allow for differentiating circumstances as no two 

Community Asset Transfers are the same. 
 
3.5 It is aligned with the Council Plan 2019-2024 and supports the ‘Wolverhampton for 

Everyone’ initiative. 
 
3.6 It supports delivery of the Strategic Asset Plan 2018-2023 and upholds the core PRIDE 

values 
 
3.7 It allows for a more innovative approach to be explored through community lead 

initiatives with the support of the Council 

Page 38



This report is PUBLIC 

 

 

 
4.0 Option appraisal 
 

4.1 A number of points were considered when updating the new policy and through 
collaboration both with various Council service areas and the Voluntary Sector, the 
updated Strategy as presented allows the enablement of transfers that will have a 
positive impact and assists in avoiding those that may have a detrimental effect through 
applying a systematic approach. This provides a robust and fair approach to ensure that 
we are allowing Community organisations to excel, whilst ensuring that the Council’s 
interests are sufficiently safeguarded. 

 
5.0  Reasons for decision 
 
5.1 The updated CAT Strategy provides a robust, clear and fair approach in line with current 

legislation and policies to ensure that we are allowing community organisations to excel, 

whilst ensuring that the Council’s interests are sufficiently safeguarded. 

5.0 Recommendation 
 
5.1 To endorse the revised Community Asset Transfer Strategy and endorse its progression 

to Cabinet for approval.  
 
6.0 Financial implications 

 

6.1  There are no direct implications arising from this report.  
 
6.2 The financial implications associated with each potential asset transfer will be assessed 

on a case by case basis and subject of future reports to Councillors for approval, in line 
with the proposed strategy detailed within this report.  

 
6.3 Applications for community asset transfer will need to be balanced against the market 

value of the asset and the Council’s established requirement to generate both rental 
income and capital receipts from its property holdings. 

 
[TT/03032020/W] 

 
7.0 Legal implications 
 
7.1 The Council will need to ensure that it complies with S.123 Local Government Act 1972. 

This requires the Council to obtain best consideration reasonably available when 
disposing of assets. Disposal includes freehold transfers and the granting of leases for a 
term of more than seven years. 

 
7.2     A general consent has been issued by the Secretary of State which allows disposals at 

an undervalue provided that the undervalue is for a sum of less than £2.0 million and the 
disposal will promote the economic, social or environmental well being of an area. 

 
7.3      Any Community Asset Transfers will need to comply with these requirements. State Aid 

will also need to be considered on a case by case basis. 

Page 39



This report is PUBLIC 

 

 

 
[TS/03022020/R] 

 
8.0 Equalities implications 
 
8.1 There are no equalities implications arising from this report. 
 
9.0 Environmental implications 
 
9.1 There are no environmental implications arising from this report. 
 
10.0 Human resources implications 
 
10.1 There are no human resources implications arising from this report. 
 
11.0 Corporate landlord implications 
 
11.1    The new CAT Strategy will provide a clear and consistent approach to Community 

Assets Transfers moving forward to assist with the efficient management of the Council’s 
asset portfolio 

 
12.0 Health and Wellbeing Implications  
 
12.1 There are no health and wellbeing implications arising from this report. 

 

13.0 Schedule of Background Papers 

13.1 None 

14.0 Appendices 

14.1 Appendix 1 – Community Asset Transfer Strategy 

 

 
 
 
. 
 

Page 40



 

 

 

 

Community Asset Transfer 

Strategy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



A Community Asset Transfer (CAT) is the process of when a 

Public Sector Body transfers the management and/or 

ownership of a property asset, sometimes including delivery 

of associated services, to a Voluntary Community 

Organisation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42



Contents 

1 What is a Community Asset Transfer? 

1.1  Why are CAT’s important? 

1.2  Purpose of the Strategy 

1.3  Regulatory Framework 

 

2 Who can apply for a Community Asset Transfer? 

 

3  Community Asset Transfer Process 

3.1 Assessing Community Asset Transfer Applications 

3.2  Timescales 

 

4 Guidance for the Applicant 

4.1  Application Criteria 

4.2  Engagement and Consultation 

 

5  Expression of Interest Form  

 

  

 

 

 

Page 43



1. What is a Community Asset Transfer? 

 A Community Asset Transfer (CAT) empowers the community to own and 

manage their own facilities. 

The strategy can be applied in circumstances where strategic priorities, at both 

corporate and community levels, can be addressed by Voluntary Sector 

Organisations through achieving service continuation and improvements along 

with social value benefits. 

All CAT’s are individual and as such will each demonstrate their own individual 

characteristics. A number of key themes will however be present in all 

transfers including: 

 CAT’s are to be community lead and meet the community demands; 

 All details concerning the transfer must be transparent; and 

 The project and associated transfer must be sustainable. 

 

CAT’s can be conducted at less than market value if it can be evidenced there is 

a local social, economic or environmental benefit, but is important to note that 

a balance needs to be achieved between community asset transfer and the 

Council’s financial requirement to generate capital receipts through disposal of 

its surplus property. 

 

 

1.1 Why are CAT’s important? 

The Council continues to face a challenging financial climate for delivery of 

public services due to ongoing cuts to the budget provided from the UK 

government. This can result in certain areas of the community feeling isolated 

and unable to develop, particularly in those areas in greatest need of economic 

stimulation. 

CAT’s are important as they support community empowerment by ensuring 

that land, buildings or services are retained or transformed and can continue 

to be of benefit for the public through community ownership and 

management. Where public assets are made available, it can assist both 

communities and local leaders improve the local area and the Council 

recognises that with the appropriate support, these community lead initiatives 

Page 44



can achieve better outcomes through providing a perspective that the Council 

may not be able to develop itself. 

 

1.2 Purpose of the Strategy 

This strategy is issued in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972 and 

is intended to act as a guide for: 

 

 Decision makers within the transferring body (The Council); 

 Voluntary Community Organisations (Community Associations, 

Voluntary Organisations, Charities, Social Enterprises, Community 

Businesses) who wish to apply for a CAT; and 

 The wider public who will be the beneficiaries of the asset transfer 

through the service it provides within the community. 

 

It will provide an integrated solution to assist in safeguarding against issues 

both now and in future generations and aids delivery of the key themes 

detailed within the Council Plan 2019 -2024, with particular emphasis around 

providing correlation with the core values of the ‘Wolverhampton For 

Everyone’ initiative. It also ensures the Council PRIDE values are upheld and 

supports delivery of the Strategic Asset Plan 2018 – 2023. 

Page 45



                          

 

 

 

This CAT Strategy is intended to provide a framework for the City of 

Wolverhampton Council and their partners to address and assist with the 

transfer of assets to predominantly local voluntary and community 

organisations (VCO’s), larger national organisations will not be excluded. CAT 

methodology must centre on mutual benefit through a joined-up vision to 

achieve a shared goal.  

The definition of a VCO as adopted for the purpose of this strategy is the same 

as that adopted for Mandatory Rate Relief which details that a VCO falls into 

one of the following categories: 

i) a charity which is included in the register of charities; 

ii)  an organisation, which although not a registered charity, is established 

for charitable and philanthropic purposes only and provides for the relief 

of poverty, the advancement of religion, education or other purposes 

beneficial to the community including science, literature or the fine arts; 

or  

Page 46



iii)  an organisation which is registered with the Inland Revenue as a 

Community Amateur Sports Club (CASC). 

 

Successfully managing a building or service carries risks and this CAT strategy 

aims to provide a fair and accountable approach for the transfer of assets from 

the Council to local community groups. It is to be adopted by VCO’s to measure 

their state of preparedness to initially undertake a transfer through 

demonstrating the viability of their proposal indicating their ongoing capacity 

and capability to appropriately manage the asset. 

The Strategy will also allow the Council to assist VCO’s in providing ongoing 

support in an open an innovative manner to support the sustainable future 

management of the asset through greater levels of engagement. 

 

 

 

The key message from the CAT Strategy is that it provides a transparent 

corporate process for asset transfer detailing both clear stages and 

timescales for each party, with a mutual understanding of the long-term 

implications and opportunities associated with both the success and failure of 

the venture. 

 

1.3 Regulatory Framework 

Local Authorities can dispose of property in several ways. However, guidance 

issued by the UK Government stipulates that any Local Authority wo are 

disposing of publicly owned assets must do so in an appropriate manner and 

be correctly accounted for. 

The disposal of a public asset is usually conducted on a commercial basis to 

ensure compliance with the general legal requirement that a Local Authority 

must achieve best value for the property, commonly referred to as ‘best 

consideration’.   

This is detailed within Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

Page 47



There are certain circumstances that allow the Council to dispose of an asset 

below market value. This is usually where it can be supported by 

demonstrating that the disposal will provide benefit to the community through 

improvement to the economic, social or environmental well-being of the 

locality. 

It is also necessary to consider the legislation concerning State Aid when 

conducting a CAT. This is where assistance is selectively provided from a 

publicly funded body to organisations conducting economic activity. Further 

advice can be found on State Aid on the UK Government website:   

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/state- 

 

2. Who can apply for a Community Asset Transfer? 

A CAT can be undertaken by a Voluntary Community Organisation (VCO), 

including larger national organisations. This is detailed further in section 1.2 of 

this strategy. 

The organisation must be driven by value rather than profit and will 

demonstrate social, cultural or environmental objectives with any surpluses 

reinvested to further benefit the community they serve. 

 

3. Community Asset Transfer Process 

The Council have a robust asset management process to support overall 

delivery of the ‘Our Council’ programme and in particular ‘Our Assets’.  

 

 

 

Page 48

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/state-


This includes regular reviews of property holdings to ensure any assets surplus 

to requirements are identified, including those potentially suitable for a CAT 

and are then subject to the Council’s disposal process.  

This process allows assets to be identified and excluded as a potential CAT 

where they have been identified for alternative Council use including economic 

development purposes and those that have the capability to generate 

significant capital receipts on the open market assist in funding capital 

projects. The Disposal process allows consideration of assets identified for 

disposal from various originating sources and is flexible to deal with these 

varying circumstances. The process also allows the Council flexibility to engage 

with a particular organisation based on the asset and nature of proposed 

disposal. 

Where assets have been identified as suitable for CAT, they will be published 

on the Council website to allow a fair and transparent process for all interested 

parties to submit their expression of interest on the pro-forma provided. The 

link for this is detailed below. 

https://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/business/business-property/community-

asset-transfer 

 

There will be a staged approach to the CAT process (as detailed below) that is 

of benefit to both the applicant and the Council. This ensures valuable 

resources are not spent preparing and assessing a full business case that has 

minimal chance of progressing and to also highlight any areas where a business 

case may be improved.  

 

Stage 1 – Expression of Interest  

Asset listed by the Council for potential CAT or identified by a VCO for 

consideration with an Expression of Interest form to be completed by 

applicant. Suitability of the asset will be considered by the Council along with 

the scope of transfer. If the asset or any applications (if more than one) are 

identified as not suitable at this stage, all applicants will be notified. Assets will 

be listed for a defined period as set by the Council. 

Stage 2 – Council Disposal Process  

Page 49

https://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/business/business-property/community-asset-transfer
https://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/business/business-property/community-asset-transfer


Having been identified as potentially suitable for CAT, the asset will then be 

subject at this stage to the Council’s disposal process. 

Stage 3 – Full Business Case 

If successfully passing through the disposal process, any applicant having 

progressed from Stage 1 will be now be required to submit a full business case. 

The criteria for this are detailed further in section 3.1 ‘Assessing Community 

Asset Transfer Application’ 

Stage 4 – Decision and Completion 

Subject to the business plan received being acceptable, the Council will then 

make a recommendation and seek the authority required for the CAT to 

progress and complete the formal transfer. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50



Community Asset Transfer Process 

  

                                                                                                

 

 

Stage 1 

                 

             

                                                      

                       

Stage 2           

 

 

  

 

 

Stage 3 

 

 

 

 

 

Stage 4 

 

 

 

Asset listed on Council website 

or identified by VCO  

 
Informal discussion to 

assess initial feasibility of 

application 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CAT agreed through 

Council approval 

process (CRP) 

Asset transferred 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation by steering 

group (Leadership Team) 

Consult with Local Members/Stakeholders 

Detailed assessment of business 

case undertaken by Council 

Departments and steering group 

(Leadership Team) 

Assessment of EOI carried out by steering 

group (Corporate Landlord Board) 

 

No transfer 

Not suitable to 

progress 

Expression of Interest 

(EOI) form completed by 

applicant and submitted 

 

Not suitable to 

progress 

No transfer 

Not suitable to 

progress 

No transfer 

Not suitable to 

progress 

No transfer 

Page 51



3.1 Assessing Community Asset Transfer Applications 

It is important that any decision process concerning CAT’s are transparent and 

the applications are assessed against clear and consistent criteria. This is of 

particular importance where there may be several VCO’s interested in the 

same asset. This section will address how the application itself will be assessed, 

while further details on the Applicant criteria can be found in section 4.1 of this 

strategy. 

When assessing an Expression of Interest(s), the Council will appraise all 

applicable applications against other options for the asset. This will be to 

substantiate the social and economic benefits that each proposal may deliver. 

This allows the Council to ascertain potential risk for each option and to justify 

any decision. These options may include: 

 Rejection of the application; 

 Freehold transfer at Market Value (or best consideration); 

 Long-term leasehold (preferential for CAT to allow all parties to realise 

objectives); or 

 Short-term leasehold, tenancy at will, licence to occupy, tenancy 

agreement. 

 

If a CAT is deemed to be the most appropriate option, several factors will need 

to be addressed in assessing the rationale provided by the applicant(s) as to 

their suitability. This allows the Council and the applicant to ensure any 

identified risks in managing the asset are reduced prior to transfer. 

The main elements to be addressed include the following: 

 Applicant meeting the eligibility Criteria (further detail provided in 

section 4.1) 

 Asset ownership; 

 Outline proposal for the asset use and scope of transfer 

 Organisational health check; 

 Business Plan and Finance (required if application is progressed to stage 

3 with further details provided for applicant in section 4.1). 

 

Page 52



The business plan element would provide detailed information addressing a 

number of criteria on which the application would be assessed including: 

 What community benefits will be realised by the transfer; 

 The value of any charges payable by the Council in relation to the 

transfer; 

 How the interests of local people will be better served; 

 The capacity of the applicant and their sustainability; 

 Financial resilience of the applicant; 

 Regeneration, social, environmental and economic benefits realised; 

 Planning policy; 

 How the transfer would assist Council efficiency and co-location of 

service providers; 

 Relevant knowledge, including experience of delivering in the 

community; 

 Proposed terms of transfer; 

 How the transfer may impact on the future operations of adjoining or 

retained assets; 

 Measures for safeguarding future management of the asset if the 

applicant ceased to exist including contract terms and covenants. 

 

It must be acknowledged that there is no standard CAT with each asset being 

considered being unique. As such, all CAT requests will be considered and 

judged on its own merits and individual arrangements will be agreed as part of 

the process. To support this the Council will endeavour to provide as much 

information to support the applicant as practicably possible but should not be 

compelled to provide information that has no relevance or that does not exist. 

At all stages of the CAT process, the Council will ensure as much detail as 

possible is made available to the applicant in relation to any responsibilities 

and liabilities that may be incurred in connection with the transfer. Further 

advice is available from the Wolverhampton Voluntary Sector Council. 

Where several parties expressing an interest in the same asset, the Council will 

aim to encourage collaboration where possible. Where this is not a suitable, a 

competitive process will be undertaken with both applications then assessed 

on their individual content, whilst ensuring that the Council attempts to obtain 

Page 53



‘best consideration’ in accordance with Section 123 of the Local Government 

Act. 

 

3.2  Timescales 

The below outlines timeframes for the Community Asset Transfer process. 

Stage 1 – A decision on the initial EOI will be made within 4-6 weeks once 

received by the Council.  

Stage 2 – If the application is progressed, a stage 2 decision will be provided 

within 16 weeks 

Stage 3 – A full business case assessment will be conducted within 12 weeks of 

receipt. 

Stage 4 – Following approval of the stage 3 business case, approval and 

completion will take place within 16 – 24 weeks. 

Total timescale – Up to 58 weeks 

 

Please note that the above timescales should be used as guidance only. 

Sufficient time will be granted to all parties to collate and provide the required 

information at each stage and any decisions will be communicated to the 

applicant in a timely manner with reasons to support the outcome. It is also 

important to recognise that where there are external dependencies such as 

decisions on funding or large, complex issues, this could take up to 24 months 

to resolve and complete. 

 

4. Guidance for the Applicant 

When a VCO applies for a CAT, it must familiarise itself with the Council’s 

strategy on the matter and any associated policies. Organisations need to be 

aware of the scale of commitment required successfully manage the asset post 

transfer and offer sustainability in the long term as opposed to just securing 

the asset for transfer. The support required will be identified as part of the Full 

Business case submission and analysis. 

 

Page 54



 

The Council recognises that ongoing support of the VCO will be required post 

completion and recognises that the partnership extends beyond the point of 

transfer to ensure longevity of the transferred asset. 

 

The below guidance provides an overview of what is required from the 

Applicant at stage 1 (Expression of Interest) and stage 3 (Full Business Case) of 

the CAT process. 

Stage 1  

The initial Expression of Interest (EOI) should provide the Council with enough 

information to enable a decision to be made as to whether the application will 

be progressed to the next stage. The information to be provided in the EOI 

form should include: 

 The name and contact details of the organisation; 

 The type of organisation; 

 The structure and purpose of the organisation; 

 The details of the asset and transfer type requested; 

 The proposed use of the asset; 

 Details of any experience in manging assets and associated services; 

 The benefits to be realised by the community, the organisation 

(Applicant) and the Council; 

 Details of partners, collaborators, stakeholders and community 

involvement; 

 Statement from sponsoring Council service if supporting the proposal; 

 Initial financial information to support the proposal. 

 

Stage 3 

The stage 3 business plan should provide an in-depth proposal that will allow 

the relevant Council steering group (Leadership Team) to make an informed 

assessment of the application against the criteria. It will provide the Council an 

overview of the financial position of the organisation and associated risk, 

evidence of proven track records delivering similar projects and how future 

opportunities will be maximised. This will include details of; 

Page 55



 The Project – Detailed information concerning the organisation, values 

and mission statement complete with aims and objectives; 

 The Market – Information on how the project will serve the community 

through existing and target markets along with the potential realisable 

benefits and identify opportunities for building partnerships through 

collaboration; 

 Business Growth and Development – This will provide a business 

development strategy for the organisation over a minimum 5-year 

period; 

 Management and Operations – A complete breakdown of all 

governance, staffing details, relevant policies and procedures alongside 

details for operating the asset and service on a day to day basis and 

development plans for community activities; 

 Development Plan – Details of the project and organisation 

sustainability and potential expansion opportunities; 

 Planned income for a minimum of 5 years, expenditure profile, and 

income generation proposals (grants/fundraising/sponsors etc) 

 Risk Management – A clear understanding and acknowledgement of 

risks associated with the project and asset transfer with supporting 

mitigation plans. 

 

The Council will consider the level of responsibility that is appropriate to be 

transferred to the VCO, however it is advised that all applicants take 

independent advice to understand their legal and financial responsibilities 

before proceeding. 

 

4.1  Application Criteria 

To be eligible for a CAT, the applicant will need to consider the following: 

 The Applicant 

 The Applicant must be a legal entity that meets the criteria of a VCO as 

detailed in this strategy 

 Must exist for community/social/environmental benefit 

 Demonstrate community engagement 

Page 56



 Demonstrate it has the capacity and skill to deliver both the service and 

manage the asset 

 Be able to provide copies of annual reports and accounts when required 

 Must benefit a diverse and wide range of people as possible and operate 

an all-inclusive approach 

 It must directly benefit the local community and its residents 

 Demonstrate good financial control with appropriate process in place 

 Be non-profit and invest surpluses into the community it serves 

 

The Asset 

 Have a legal interest owned by the Council 

 Multi-use and co-location are to be encouraged where possible 

 

The Proposed Use 

 There should be a need and demand for proposed services 

 The proposed use will support delivery of the Council Plan 2019 -2024 

 The use of the asset will maximise opportunities to ensure sustainability 

  The asset will be utilisations of the asset will be at an optimum 

 The use will be open to all 

 

4.2 Engagement and Consultation 

All potential applicants are encouraged to engage with Voluntary Sector 

Representative Organisations to assist in preparation of EOI’s and Business 

Plans. This will help reduce the number of unsuccessful applications and to 

provide guidance for VCO’s in determining if an asset is viable and fit for 

purpose. 

The following organisation can provide such support within Wolverhampton: 

Wolverhampton Voluntary Sector Council 

http://www.wolverhamptonvsc.org.uk 

It is also recommended that VCO’s engage and request support from 

Councillors as they will have links with local groups and provides evidence of 

community engagement. 

 

Page 57

http://www.wolverhamptonvsc.org.uk/


5. Expression of Interest Form 

The link below will direct you the Council website where the Expression of 

Interest Form can be completed electronically 

https://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/business/business-property/expression-

of-interest 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 58

https://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/business/business-property/expression-of-interest
https://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/business/business-property/expression-of-interest

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Annual Social Care, Public Health and Corporate Complaints Report
	Appendix 1 for Annual Social Care, Public Health and Corporate Complaints Report
	Appendix 3 for Annual Social Care, Public Health and Corporate Complaints Report
	Appendix 4 for Annual Social Care, Public Health and Corporate Complaints Report
	Appendix 2 for Annual Social Care, Public Health and Corporate Complaints Report

	6 Community Asset Transfer Policy and Strategy Review
	Appendix 1 - Community Asset Transfer Policy and Strategy Review


